HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

21 JANUARY 2022

PRESENT

D. Eaton (in the Chair), H. Fairfield, G. Devlin, M. Noble, E. Roaf, H. Gollins, R. Spearing, S. Radcliffe, J. Wareing, D. Evans, M. Hill, A. Seabourne, J. McGregor and M. Gallagher.

In attendance

Thom Maloney	Health and Social Care Programme Director
Alexander Murray	Governance Officer

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. E. Brophy, J. Harding, J. Holden, C. Hynes, J. Slater, C. Davidson, Dr. M. Jarvis and Dr. I. Muhammad.

19. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE MEETING

As apologies had been received from the Chair and Vice Chair Board Members were asked to nominate a Chair for the meeting. The Corporate Director of Adult Services was nominated, the nomination was seconded by the Joint Accountable Officer for Trafford CCG and agreed by the Members in attendance.

RESOLVED: That the Corporate Director of Adults services be appointed as Chair for duration of the meeting.

20. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held 24 September 2022 be agreed as an accurate record.

21. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations were made.

22. QUESTIONS RECEIVED FROM THE PUBLIC

No questions were received.

23. CDOP ANNUAL REPORT

The Acting Director of Public Health delivered a presentation which provided an overview of the report that had been circulated with the agenda. The Committee were informed of the make-up, role, and functioning of the Panel. The CDOP panel was a collaboration between Trafford, Stockport, and Tameside. The presentation contained data on notifications of child deaths from 2014/15 up to 2020/21. In the last two years 19 children had died in Trafford and over the last seven years 99 children had died in Trafford. The deaths were then broken down by age range, ethnicity, levels of deprivation, and categories of death in cases closed.

The Acting Director of Public Health spoke about the importance of having accurate data collection and reporting to ensure that the Board were able to identify any trends or areas of concern. Deaths in under 1-year olds and expected and unexpected deaths had been identified as areas of focus for the CDOP Board. The Committee were shown the levels of deaths with and without modifiable factors and given examples of modifiable factors, which included parental smoking and substance misuse. The presentation concluded with the 8 recommendations that were to go to all the authorities who were part of the CDOP Board.

Following the presentation, Board Members discussed the different aspects of the report. The Corporate Director for Children's service spoke of the importance of ensuring the recommendations were shared across interconnected forums, including the Safeguarding Partnership. The Director of Public Health expressed that there was a need for a campaign to inform people of the risks associated with multiple births, especially those considering IVF treatments, and to ensure IVF providers implanted two or more foetuses only in exceptional circumstances.

The Chair moved the recommendations of the report, which were unanimously agreed.

The Chair noted the large number of Boards the report was to be disseminated to and asked whether it was being tracked and would be fed back to the Board. The Acting Director of Public Health responded that she would meet with the Corporate Director of Children's Services to agree where the report would go and when. The Chair added that the Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing, and Equalities should also be consulted as the report would need to go to the Start Well and Live Well Sub Boards and possibly the Age Well Sub Board.

The Joint Accountable Officer for Trafford CCG added that the report should also be taken to the One System Board and she would pick it up as an action.

RESOLVED:

- 1) That the report be noted and all recommendations agreed.
- 2) That the Acting Director of Public Health is to meet with the Corporate Director of Children's Services and the Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing, and Equalities to discuss the distribution of the report.
- 3) That the Joint Accountable Officer for Trafford CCG plan for the report to be taken to the One System Board.

24. PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

The Director of Public Health went through a presentation that provided an overview of the annual report. Board Members were asked to note the report's recommendations and consider whether there was overlap from the CDOP report and the health protection forum report and how the recommendations could be grouped to avoid duplication.

The Director of Public Health then went through a presentation on the annual report, which was focused upon health inequalities. The report covered the healthy life expectancy gap, mental health and the impact of covid, the importance of trust between residents and providers, and intersectionality. The presentation concluded with the specific recommendations on weight management and the more general recommendations from the annual report.

Following the presentation Board Members were given the opportunity to ask questions or make comments. Board Members welcomed the report, its findings, and recommendations. In discussions Board Members made it clear that they appreciated the approach of linking the wider determinants of health with deprivation and around taking learning from the COVID 19 pandemic.

The Corporate Director of Children's services added that when considering the wider determinants of health, she was surprised that speech and language therapy and child development did not come up. The Corporate Director of Children's services was also surprised that neglect was not covered in the report, as the point that "healthy children turned into healthy adults" was very well made. The final point from the Corporate Director of Children's services that there was a need to look at the mental health of adults as well as children as one impacted the other. The Director of Public Health responded that she agreed with the points raised but there were always going to be some areas left out of the annual report, given the wide range of areas covered by public health, and assured the Board that the areas mentioned were picked up through other pieces of work.

The Chair asked if the Board accepted the recommendations for noting. The Corporate Director of Children's Services suggested that the wording of one of the recommendations be changed. The Director of Public Health responded that work would be done with the Board to turn the recommendations of the annual report into an action plan, which would provide opportunity to adjust the recommendations.

The Chair requested ambitions be set for each of the different areas of work within the Annual Report and for them to be aligned with the performance measures agreed as part of the health and social care integration.

RESOLVED:

- 1) That the report and its recommendations be noted.
- 2) That the recommendations of the report be progressed into an action plan.

25. HEALTH VISITING AND SCHOOL NURSING REVIEW

The Acting Director of Public Health pulled out the key salient points from the report. The Board were informed of the key elements of support delivered by School Nurses and Health Visitors. The review had begun in 2018 and, as part of the review, the Public Health Team had built a strong working partnership with MFT, which would help to deliver work going forward. The review looked at a wide range of elements of both services. Public health commissioned both services and

MFT was the provider of those services. The current contract was in place until April 2022 and the service specification being developed was for the provision of a stepped approach that would develop over time.

The Acting Director of Public Health then detailed how the review was conducted and the key findings of the review. The key findings had been divided up into four areas of performance, staffing, service delivery, and other. There were many outcomes from the review and they had been captured within the service specification. An outcome framework had been developed and some of the outcomes were already being delivered.

The Acting Director of Public Health spoke of the important roll School Nurses and Health visitors had played in the delivery of the vaccination programme and how they would continue to support immunisation. The stepped approach would eventually lead to the creation of a separate immunisation team. The Board were informed of the crucial roll the service would play in supporting children's healthy weight programmes. The Acting Director of Public Health concluded the overview by informing the Board of the plans to create an advanced care team to help manage demand.

Following the overview, the Corporate Director of Children's Services noted the importance of developing the digital patient record mentioned within the report and the data analysis it would enable. The Corporate Director of Children's Services added that the report needed to be circulated to various other Boards, including the Start Well Board, to ensure all relevant partners had sight of it.

The Chair of the Trafford Safeguarding Partnership welcomed the report and noted the need for an in-depth discussion around the findings of the review and the outcomes in relation to safeguarding.

The Chair of Healthwatch Trafford noted that the School Nursing service struggled with the levels of staffing and, while she welcomed the recruitment approaches suggested within the report, voiced concerns as to whether the service would be able to retain staff. The Chair of Healthwatch Trafford also raised concerns around nutrition in schools and noted that it would have been helpful to have funding figures benchmarked against neighbouring authorities. The Acting Director of Public Health responded that an exercise had been conducted at a Greater Manchester level, but it was difficult to compare due to the different types of funding used by each authority. The Chair asked whether there was an analysis which could be shared detailing the number of young people per member of staff. The Acting Director of Public Health confirmed that there was a piece of analysis available, and she would share it with Board Members via email.

Following the questions, the Chair moved the recommendation that the report be noted and it was agreed.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

26. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD RESET

The Acting Director of Public Health delivered a short presentation on the LGA peer review. The Board were informed the purpose of the review was to look at the Health and Wellbeing Board in the context of the wider governance arrangements within Trafford and to determine how it should align with partners, including the Integrated Care Board and the One System Board. The presentation detailed what Trafford had asked the LGA to provide support on, the support proposal, and the next steps. Board Members were informed that the review would involve several interviews between Board Members and the Peers from the LGA. A survey would also be circulated to all Board Members and the Acting Director of Public Health asked them to take time to complete it. The aim was to have the findings of the review ready for discussion at the Health and Wellbeing Workshop in March 2022.

Following the presentation, The Director of Public Health added that the review was about thinking of the relationship of the Board with partners who could deliver change. The Chair Commented that it was a particularly crucial to ensure the Board was well positioned within the new Health and Social Care System, as it would enable the Board to set priorities that effected delivery, to influence work across the system, and to hold elements of the system to account.

RESOLVED: That the presentation be noted.

27. NHS AND INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM DEVELOPMENTS

The Health and Social Care Programme Director went through an updated version of the presentation included within the agenda pack. The presentation covered the background to the development of the One System Board, recent changes and priorities, the draft Trafford Locality operating model, the transition assumptions and approach, an overview of governance arrangements of the 5 key boards, the development of the working groups, the staffing make up of the CCG, the functions of the different elements of the One System Board, a description of the Place Leader roll, a list of the Place Leader roll's characteristics and duties, and the next steps for the programme.

Following the presentation, the Joint Accountable Officer for Trafford CCG summarised that the ICB would be delivering the locality plan. The locality operating model would continue to deliver services with communities and neighbourhoods utilising coproduction to ensure a bottom-up approach was taken.

The Local ICB Shadow architecture was built upon Trafford's existing structure. The Locality Board was based upon the Joint Commissioning Board, which had been in place since 2018, with additional partners added to strengthen it. The Provider Collaborative Board was built upon the Local Care Alliance, which had been operating for several years and had expanded throughout the pandemic.

The Place Leader roll was in discussion across the whole of Greater Manchester and for Trafford it would be accountable to the ICB but anchored within Trafford.

The appointment of the Place Leader roll was subject to a HR process and until the process was complete the Joint Accountable Officers from Trafford CCG would hold the position. Everybody below Board level at Trafford CCG would be subject to "lift and shift" with their roles moved into the ICB. Trafford CCG was to be disestablished at the end of June meaning all its statutory duties would be transferred to the ICB at that point.

The Chair of the Joint Safeguarding Partnership added that there was an expectation the current safeguarding arrangements would remain in place despite the changes to local system architecture. The Board were assured that the Safeguarding Partnership were being engaged in discussions to ensure the statutory responsibilities for safeguarding continued and how they could be strengthened through the ICS and ICB.

RESOLVED: That the NHS and Integrated Care System Developments be noted.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and finished at 12.00 p.m.